
 
 

SCRUTINY : SOCIAL SERVICES 
 

3.00 pm TUESDAY, 11TH JUNE, 2019 
COUNCIL CHAMBER 

 
A Pre-Meeting will take place in Conference Room 1 at 2.30 pm.   

This meeting is for Committee Members only  

 
 

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded.  
  

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used for 
training purposes by the Democratic Services Department. 

 
The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber and using 

the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public are consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined above.   

 

 
 

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on (01685) 

725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be 
found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations)  

 

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

3. Safeguarding Board Annual Report and Plan 
(2018/19)  

 

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Social 
Services 
 

5 - 32 

4. Young Carers Strategy   

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Social 
Services 
 

33 - 90 

5. Draft Forward Work Programme 2019/20   

 To consider the attached report 
 

91 - 102 

6. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions  

 

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 

7. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting   

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 

8. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair   

  
 
COMPOSITION: 

 
Councillors:  W R Smith (Chair) 
                     S Jago (Vice-Chair) 

  
 Councillors: G Richards, T Rogers, D Sammon and 

I Thomas 
 
Co-optees: E Davies 

  
together with appropriate officers 
 

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Safeguarding Board Annual Report and Plan 
(2018/19) 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to present to Scrutiny Committee the Annual Plan for 

2019/20 in relation to the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Regional Safeguarding Board. 
 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 Scrutiny Committee to note the content of the report and ask appropriate questions 

in relation to its implementation. 
 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Safeguarding involves both the protection of children and adults at risk from abuse, 

neglect or other kinds of harm and preventing them from becoming at risk of abuse, 
neglect or other kinds of harm. 

 
3.2 The Cwm Taf Safeguarding Board is the multi-agency partnership that has 

responsibility for safeguarding children and adults at risk in Rhondda Cynon Taf and 
Merthyr Tydfil. From 1st April 2019 Bridgend joined the Board and this report 
presents the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board Plan for 2019/20. 

 
3.3 The purpose of the Annual Report is twofold; it is a tool of accountability and a tool 

for evaluation. Accountability has three components: 
 

Date Written 29th May 2019 

Report Author Nicola Kingham 

Service Area Cwm Taf Morgannwg 
Safeguarding Board 

Committee Date 11th June 2019 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 accountability to the public; 
 accountability to the statutory partner agencies of the Board; and 
 accountability to the inspectorate bodies. 

 
3.4 The required content of the Report is set out in the statutory guidance under Part 7 

of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014. 
 

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 In June 2018, the Welsh Government announced that from 1 April 2019, Cwm Taf 

University Health Board will be responsible for healthcare services in the Bridgend 
County Borough Council area. This means that accompanying partnership structures 
in the delivery of social services across the Western Bay region will transfer to Cwm 
Taf, with the creation of a new Regional Safeguarding Board for the Cwm Taf 
Morgannwg area. 

4.2 The Board is required to publish an Annual Plan each year, setting out its priorities 
for improvement in the coming year. 

 
 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 The area of Cwm Taf Morgannwg covers the local authority areas of Bridgend, 

Merthyr Tydfil and Rhondda Cynon Taf with a total population of almost 440,000. 
 
5.2  The Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board (CTMSB) is a statutory partnership 

made up of the agencies that are responsible for safeguarding children and adults at 
risk in the Cwm Taf Morgannwg area. The Board ensures that people of all ages, 
living in the region, are protected from abuse, neglect or other kinds of harm. This 
also involves preventing abuse, neglect or other kinds of harm from happening.  

 
5.3 The two key safeguarding objectives around protection and prevention underpin the 

work of the Safeguarding Board and inform the priorities that we have agreed in this 
Annual Plan for 2019/2020. 

 
 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 In addition to carrying out its core statutory safeguarding functions, the Cwm Taf 

Morgannwg Safeguarding Board has agreed a number of key priorities for 
improvement for the coming year. These are specific areas that will enhance and 
support the Board in achieving its objectives and are as follows:  

 
 Safeguard children, young people and adults at risk from the impact of domestic 

abuse 
 Improve the way in which we communicate, engage and promote participation 

with our communities and partner agencies 
 Ensure that the transition to the new regional footprint for safeguarding is 

managed effectively 
 
 

Page 4



7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 A detailed work plan for the Board and its sub groups will sit underneath the Annual 

Plan. The work plan will include the actions required to achieve the improvements 
required, who is responsible, timescales and measures of success. The progress of 
the work plan will be monitored and reviewed on a quarterly basis and will form the 
basis of the Annual Report for 2019/2020.  

 
 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 
 

8.1 Living Well 
People are empowered to live independently within their communities, where they 
are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health. 

 

 

 
LISA CURTIS JONES 
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES) 

COUNCILLOR CHRIS DAVIES    
CABINET MEMBER FOR                 

SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Cwm Taf Morgannwg 
Safeguarding Board 
Annual Plan 2019/20 

 
 

April 2019  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



 
 

Guidelines for Reporting To Scrutiny Committees 
 

The ‘key features of most successful meetings are defined as:- 
 

(a) Brief presentation of the report by the Cabinet Member / Officer lasting no more 
than 15 minutes 

(b) Appropriately robust questions prepared in advance by scrutiny and audit 
members 

(c) Follow-up questions to initial responses 
(d) A balance between Cabinet Member and officer responses to questions 
(e) Targeting of specific questions by the chair to either officers or to the Cabinet 

Member or both 
(f) The Cabinet Member volunteering appropriate information and responses whether 

or not the question was initially directed towards them. 
 

Scrutiny committees have wide ranging remits. Each year Members agree a work 
programme, which identifies specific areas from within their remit that they will focus on 
throughout the year. This work will take up a large proportion of the time available in 
meetings. The time available for items not included in the work programme is therefore 
limited. The Committees will request reports from time to time on work programme 
items and occasionally on other items, which arise during the year. 

 
Getting reports on to Scrutiny Agendas  
 
1. If a scrutiny committee has requested a report the Scrutiny Officer will contact the 

appropriate officer(s) and explain what the committee wants and when the agenda 
deadlines are. The deadline for submitting a report to scrutiny is a week before the 
actual meeting e.g. if the meeting is on a Monday the report is required by lunchtime 
the previous Monday (or the previous working day if a Bank Holiday) 
 

2. If you have a report that you think should go to a scrutiny committee which has not 
been requested by the committee you should contact the Scrutiny Officer at the earliest 
possible opportunity so that they can discuss with the Chair whether they wish to take 
the report and where it will fit into the committee's work programme. This will avoid you 
wasting time preparing a report if the committee do not wish to consider it. 

 
3. The Scrutiny Officer will be happy to advise and discuss draft reports with officers 

before they are finalised. They will also be happy to advise officers on how the meeting 
is likely to be conducted and how the committee prefers to have reports introduced at 
the meeting. 

 
Format of Reports 
 
4. Reports to Scrutiny Committees can be for a variety of different purposes and no single 

framework is likely to meet all needs. Officers therefore have flexibility in drafting 
reports in order to best meet the needs of the Committee.  
 

5. Reports for scrutiny committees should normally be written on the Councils “Scrutiny 
Committee Report” template. This does not apply to people from outside of the Council 

Page 6



as reports from external organisations should be written on the organisation’s own 
template and submitted to the appropriate Scrutiny Officer before they go on to agenda 
papers. In the case of external organisation reports the Scrutiny Officer will usually 
prepare a short covering report to explain the context and background to the report and 
include both in the agenda papers. 

 
6. Scrutiny committees need to have reports which are accurate, focused, analytical and 

of appropriate length. It is often better to have a short covering report (up to 4 pages) 
with the necessary issues highlighted and analysed with the backing data and 
information in appendices.  

 

7. Reports should be written in clear understandable language and accessible to lay 
people. Acronyms and technical terms should be avoided as far as possible and when 
they must be used they should be defined or explained in the report. (R14 of the WAO Annual 

Improvement report and Corporate Assessment June 2015 state that “some reports are still far too long and the 
tendency by a small number of officers to include everything that seems relevant is counter-productive. Committee 
members end up being unsure about what is relevant and the key messages will often be lost).  

 
8. Officers will need to set their own layout and headings as the issues of the report 

dictate but generally the best reports tend to follow the format below; and within this 
focus on outputs and outcomes, not just activity and process:- 

 

 Where were we? (Previous position a few years ago) 

 Where do we want to be? (Our ambition) 

 Where are we now? (Progress and improvements made) 

 What do we need to do next to reach our ambition? 
 
9. Within the four headings above, Scrutiny requires the reports to outline each key aspect 

through, but not necessarily limited to, the following:- 
 

 a short description;  

 a clear analysis; 

 an indication of what needs to occur to improve the aspect; 

 how this improvement will be achieved;  

 the barriers that may need to be overcome; 

 the outcomes and when these will be achieved; 

 what success will look like 

 if and how progress will be reported to scrutiny  

 show how your area(s) creates or provides value for money to the Council's 
work.  

 provide evidence of progress made ref Action Plans during a monitoring & 
evaluation programme. 

 
Recommendations 
 
10. Report writers should note that Scrutiny Committees cannot take decisions. They are 

influencing bodies. 
 
11. The recommendations set out in reports should be carefully framed to reflect the 

purpose for bringing the report to the committee’s attention. Some examples of 
appropriate types of recommendations are:-  

 

Page 7



 That the scrutiny committee discusses and comments on the issues set out in 
the report.  

 That the scrutiny committee comments on the options set out in the report  

 That the scrutiny committee identifies any further information they would like to 
receive  

 That the scrutiny committee identifies priorities which can be taken into account 
by Cabinet in developing budget proposals 

 That the scrutiny committee notes the contents of this report. 
 
Reports for Information or Discussion  
 
12. The main items on scrutiny agendas are normally reports for discussion. Agendas 

may also include reports for information. Reports should normally be endorsed either 
"For Discussion" or "For Information". Scrutiny committees do not normally take 
decisions so reports should not be endorsed "for decision". 

 
13. Check with the Scrutiny Officer how the report should be introduced at the committee. 

Scrutiny committees prefer officers to keep introductions short so that more time is 
available to discuss the report.  

 

14. The author or the author’s representative will usually be expected to attend the 
meeting, which considers the report, to introduce the report and answer questions. 

 

15. Committees may also take some reports for information. These may be suggested by 
officers, or referred from other committees or requested by the scrutiny committee. 
Some information reports are submitted on a regular basis to keep the committee up to 
date on a particular topic. Information reports should be relevant to a committee's remit.  

 

Access to Information  
 
16. Scrutiny committee meetings are subject to the Council's Access to Information 

Procedure Rules, which are set out in the Constitution. 
 
17. Agenda papers need to be published, then printed and distributed, at least 3 clear 

working days before the meeting takes place (not including the day it is published or the 
day of the meeting, nor weekends and bank holidays). 

 
18. Most scrutiny reports are not confidential and will be available to the press and public 

once the agenda is circulated. You should bear this in mind when writing reports and 
should consider whether a report is likely to attract media attention or create 
controversy. This is particularly relevant if the information in the report is being made 
public for the first time. Remember that all committee reports are public documents 
(with the exception of exempt items). 

 
19. If you consider it likely that a report will attract press interest or create controversy you 

should discuss this with the Scrutiny Officer; you may also wish to discuss it with the 
Communications Section. 

Page 8



 

 

 

Cwm Taf Morgannwg 

Safeguarding Board 
 

Annual Plan 2019/20 
 

Table of Contents Page 

P
age 9



2 
CTMSB Annual Plan 2019/20  

 

 
  

SAFEGUARDING IN CWM TAF MORGANNWG 3 

What is Abuse and Neglect? 

Safeguarding for All 

Who are the Members of the Safeguarding Board? 

What are the Core Functions of the Safeguarding Board? 

4 

WHAT ARE THE OUTCOMES THAT WE PROPOSE TO ACHIEVE THIS YEAR?  

1. Safeguard children, young people and adults at risk from the impact of domestic abuse     

2. Improve the way in which we communicate, engage and promote participation with our communities and 
partner agencies 

3. Ensure that the transition to the new regional footprint for safeguarding is managed effectively 

5 

6 – 9  

10 – 12  

 

12 - 15 

WHO DO WE INTEND TO COLLABORATE WITH TO ACHIEVE OUR OBJECTIVES?  15 – 16  

Are You Concerned About Someone?  17 

APPENDIX 1 - BOARD MEMBERSHIP 18 – 20  

APPENDIX 2 - BOARD STRUCTURE 21 

P
age 10



3 
CTMSB Annual Plan 2019/20  

SAFEGUARDING IN CWM TAF MORGANNWG 
 
In June 2018, the Welsh Government announced that from 1 April 2019, Cwm Taf University Health Board will be responsible for 
healthcare services in the Bridgend County Borough Council area. This means that accompanying partnership structures in the 
delivery of social services across the Western Bay region will transfer to Cwm Taf, with the creation of a new Regional 
Safeguarding Board for the Cwm Taf Morgannwg area. 
 
This is the first Annual Plan for the new Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board. 
 
The area of Cwm Taf Morgannwg covers the local authority areas of Bridgend, Merthyr Tydfil and Rhondda Cynon Taf with a total 
population of almost 440,000. 
 
The Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board (CTMSB) is a statutory partnership made up of the agencies that are responsible 
for safeguarding children and adults at risk in the Cwm Taf Morgannwg area. The Board ensures that people of all ages, living in 
the region, are protected from abuse, neglect or other kinds of harm. This also involves preventing abuse, neglect or other kinds of 
harm from happening.  
 
Keeping children and adults who may have needs for care and support safe is everyone's responsibility. This means feeling safe 
and being safe within their home or in their community, school, work place or anywhere else they go. 
 
The two key safeguarding objectives around protection and prevention underpin the work of the Safeguarding Board and inform 
the priorities that we have agreed in this Annual Plan for 2019/2020. 
 
The Cwm Taf Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) sits within the structure of the Board and covers the areas of Merthyr 
Tydfil and Rhondda Cynon Taf. The purpose of the MASH is to act as the single point of contact for all professionals to report 
safeguarding concerns. This has significantly improved the sharing of information between agencies, helping to protect the most 
vulnerable children and adults from harm, neglect and abuse.  
 
The Bridgend Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) provides safeguarding services from both the local authority in Bridgend 
and its partners through co-location and virtual links. MASH provides the opportunity for a higher standard of safeguarding by 
providing all professionals with more information on which to make better, more informed decisions. The MASH enables earlier, 
higher-quality information sharing, collective risk analysis and streamlined decision-making, whilst ensuring the appropriate actions 
take place at the appropriate time. It also allows an opportunity for early intervention and prevention of repeat referrals.  

P
age 11



4 
CTMSB Annual Plan 2019/20  

 

 

What is Abuse and Neglect? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Safeguarding for All 
The Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board carries out its objectives in line with the national statutory guidance as set out in 
Part 7 of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014. Our aim is to improve safeguarding arrangements for everyone. 
Collaboration between children and adults safeguarding arrangements in the area has resulted in a number of joint functions, 
including a joint Safeguarding Board. The Board continues to take every opportunity to collaborate across children and adults 
safeguarding to support joint working and the sharing of information and learning. 
 
 

Who are the Members of the Safeguarding Board? 
The Lead Partner for the Board is Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council and the membership complies with the statutory 
guidance issued under Part 7 of the Social Services and Well Being Act 2014. A list of members is attached as Appendix 1. 

 
 

What are the Core Functions of the Safeguarding Board? 
Every Regional Safeguarding Board has a statutory responsibility to carry out core functions in relation to multi-agency 
safeguarding. The Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board carries out these day to day functions via specific committees and 
sub groups (see Appendix 2). These include: 
 

 Contributing to the development, implementation and monitoring of protocols and procedures that support the protection of 
adults and children and to prevent abuse  

 
 Raising awareness of the Board’s objectives to protect and prevent adults and children from becoming at risk of abuse, 

neglect and other forms of harm, and to provide information about how this might be achieved 

o Abuse means physical, sexual, psychological, emotional or financial abuse.  

o Neglect means a failure to meet a person’s basic physical, emotional, social or psychological needs, which is likely to result in 
an impairment of the person’s well-being. 

 

P
age 12



5 
CTMSB Annual Plan 2019/20  

 
 Reviewing the efficacy of measures taken by agencies to implement the objectives of the Board and to make and monitor 

recommendations  
 

 Undertaking child practice reviews, adult practice reviews, audits, investigations and other reviews as are required in 
pursuance of its objectives and to disseminate learning and information arising from these reviews 

 
 Reviewing the performance of the Board and its partners and bodies represented on the Board in carrying out its objectives 

 
 Facilitating research into protection from, and prevention of, abuse and neglect of children and adults at risk of harm 

 
 Review the training needs of practitioners working in the area of the Board in order to identify training to assist in the 

protection and prevention of abuse and neglect of children and adults at risk of harm  
 
 

 

WHAT ARE THE OUTCOMES THAT WE PROPOSE TO ACHIEVE THIS YEAR?  
 
In addition to carrying out the core statutory safeguarding functions, the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board has agreed a 
number of key priorities for improvement for the coming year. These are specific areas that will enhance and support the Board in 
achieving its objectives and are as follows:  
 

1 Safeguard children, young people and adults at risk from the impact of domestic abuse 
 

2 Improve the way in which we communicate, engage and promote participation with our 
communities and partner agencies 

 
3 Ensure that the transition to the new regional footprint for safeguarding is managed effectively 

 
 

P
age 13



6 
CTMSB Annual Plan 2019/20  

A detailed work plan for the Board and its sub groups will sit underneath this strategic Annual Plan. The work plan will include the 
actions required to achieve the improvements required, who is responsible, timescales and measures of success. The progress of 
the work plan will be monitored and reviewed on a quarterly basis and will form the basis of the Annual Report for 2019/2020.  
 
An overview of what the Board intends to do to achieve its priorities for the coming year is detailed below.  
 
 

Strategic Priority 1: Safeguard children, young people and adults at risk from the impact of domestic 
abuse 

Domestic abuse involves any type of controlling, bullying, threatening or violent behaviour between partners or family members, 
regardless of age, gender or sexuality.  

All forms of domestic abuse have a profound effect on those who experience it. The impact that domestic abuse can have on 
children and young people is devastating and can lead to problems in adulthood and have a detrimental impact on their mental 
health and wellbeing. This is a similar case for older people, but often the domestic abuse may not be as visible or they may not be 
aware of the support that is available to them. Some people will be more vulnerable to domestic abuse, such as disabled people 
who may not have the ability to defend themselves and/or be less able to access support.  

In Cwm Taf, between January and December 2018, there were 980 high risk domestic abuse cases referred in to the MARAC1 
process. 

The Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015 sets out the requirements for an improved 
collective public sector response to the way these issues are addressed, to support victims and to prevent abuse from happening. 
There are Steering Groups that sits under the Cwm Taf and Bridgend Community Safety Partnerships to deliver regional strategies 
for VAWDASV.  

The Safeguarding Board will therefore deliver this strategic priority in conjunction with the Community Safety Partnership to achieve 
the best outcomes possible for victims and their families. 

 

 

                                                           
1
 Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference 

P
age 14



7 
CTMSB Annual Plan 2019/20  

Priority Area What do we need to do? Outcome Indicators 

Preventing Domestic 
Abuse 

To PREVENT abuse we will: 

Raise awareness amongst professionals and the public on how to 
recognise and respond to domestic abuse (see Strategic Priority 2) 

Raise awareness amongst care providers and the third sector 
working with groups at increased risk of domestic abuse 

Ensure that all professional groups are well represented on multi-
agency safeguarding training programmes covering domestic 
abuse, including the VAWDASV Ask and Act training 

Promote the work of those providing healthy relationships 
education in schools to break the cycle that children and young 
people who grow up living with domestic abuse themselves 
become involved either as victims or perpetrators in adult life 

Make links with the colleges and the University in the region to 
support the work of the Board in safeguarding people from 
domestic abuse 

Ensure there are training opportunities for all agencies in order to 
raise awareness of the impact of adverse childhood experiences 
(ACEs) upon young people and adults 

 Training evaluations evidence 
an increased awareness of 
domestic abuse 

 Training evaluations evidence 
an increased awareness of 
adverse childhood experiences 
(ACEs) 

 Practice deficits identified in 
CPRs and audits are addressed 
and improved practice 
outcomes evidenced 

 An increase in domestic abuse 
referrals from the third sector 

 Professionals reporting and 
evidencing that the learning and 
development they receive in 
respect of Domestic Abuse has 
improved their practice and 
outcomes for the children and 
families they work with  

Protecting and 
Supporting Children 
who have been 
affected by Domestic 
Abuse 

We will PROTECT and SUPPORT children by: 

Ensuring that the impact and the risks posed by domestic abuse 
inform professional assessments and plans 

Being assured that the voice of the child is sought and heard in all 
Board activities aimed at protecting children and young people 
from domestic abuse 

Recognising domestic abuse, where the perpetrator is an 

 Child protection plans result in 
objective, tangible 
improvements in the wellbeing 
and safety of children and their 
families  

 Children and parents identify 
positive improvements in their 
safety and wellbeing as a result 

P
age 15



8 
CTMSB Annual Plan 2019/20  

adolescent (between the ages of 13 and 18) and responding 
appropriately 

Seeking assurances that work is being undertaken with 
perpetrators to address their offending behaviour and take an 
active interest in the same 

Explore the merits of expanding the model already adopted in 
Bridgend of informing schools in advance of the next school day, of 
domestic abuse incidents involving their pupils, enabling schools to 
respond appropriately 

of the work arising from Child 
Protection Plans 

 Domestic violence 
reduces/ceases in those 
families where it was identified 
as a risk factor 

 A reduction in the number of 
Police Protection Notices for 
domestic abuse 

 An increased number of 
perpetrators engaged on 
perpetrator programmes 

Protecting and 
Supporting Adults at 
Risk who have been 
affected by Domestic 
Abuse  

We will PROTECT and SUPPORT adults at risk by: 

Seeking assurances that strategy discussions are held on a multi-
agency basis where there are indications that domestic abuse is 
involved  

Making the connections between adult safeguarding and domestic 
abuse to understand the barriers to reporting experienced by older 
people  

Targeting support for the most vulnerable groups who are at a high 
risk of being subject to domestic abuse e.g. pregnancy, learning 
disability, LGBT, mental health 

Being satisfied that the provision of an independent mental 
capacity advocate is considered in all cases where a person lacks 
capacity to make decisions about keeping themselves safe from 
domestic abuse 

Establishing improved reporting arrangements for care providers 
where a crime has been committed 

 Increased MARAC referrals by 
adult social care professionals 

 Adults at risk identify positive 
improvements in their safety 
and wellbeing as a result of the 
work arising from their Care & 
Support Plans 

 Domestic violence 
reduces/ceases for adults at 
risk where it was identified as a 
risk factor 

 A reduction in the number of 
Police Protection Notices for 
domestic abuse 

P
age 16



9 
CTMSB Annual Plan 2019/20  

Learning from 
Domestic Homicide 
Reviews 

We will work in conjunction with the Community Safety 
Partnership to:  

Complete Domestic Homicide Reviews that meet the Home Office 
criteria and produce timely learning 

Ensure that the learning from published Domestic Homicide 
Reviews is shared appropriately and has a positive impact on 
practice 

Carry out a pilot project in conjunction with Gwent Safeguarding 
Board to carry out a Domestic Homicide Review, using the Adult 
Practice Review process   

 An improvement in the number 
of Domestic Homicide Reviews 
meeting Home Office 
timescales and quality 
standards 

 An increased number of 
practitioners receiving 
information on learning from 
reviews  

 An improvement in practice 
following actions generated 
from learning from reviews 

The Multi Agency 
Risk Assessment 
Conference process 

Learning from and building on the model already established 
in Bridgend we will improve the MARAC process by: 

Continuing to integrate the work of the MARAC into the day to day 
functions of the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hubs 

Completing the development of a quality assurance and 
performance framework for the MARAC process and agreeing 
reporting mechanisms 

Developing a framework and criteria for the MARAC process to 
ensure that the focus is on risk and agreed actions including 
methods of working more effectively with those who do not engage 
with service provisions 

 

 A reduction in repeat victims of 
domestic abuse 

 We will receive update and 
performance reports from the 
Community Safety Partnership / 
VAWDASV Board on MARAC 
developments regionally     

 A reduction in the number of 
cases being referred to our 
main MARAC 

 
 
 

Strategic Priority 2: Improve the way in which we communicate, engage and promote participation with 

P
age 17



10 
CTMSB Annual Plan 2019/20  

our communities and partner agencies 

The Safeguarding Board is required to raise awareness with the public of the need to protect and prevent children, young people 
and adults from becoming at risk of abuse, neglect and other forms of harm, and provide information about how this can be 
achieved. As part of developing a positive culture of learning the Board also needs to ensure that information is widely 
disseminated within the workforce to inform them about best practice and learning arising from reviews, audits and other Board 
activities. 

It is also necessary for us to provide children, young people and adults with an opportunity to participate in our work. We want to do 
this creatively to raise the profile of safeguarding in the region. This year we aim to increase the amount of engagement with the 
public, improving links with local forums and activity groups to ensure the voices of the people we support are thoroughly 
embedded into our work. 

We also want to ensure that all feedback provided as a result of these activities is recorded and evaluated.  

The Board has an established Group whose aim is to ensure that there are clear processes in place for the identification of 
engagement and participation needs and to capture the activities of partner agencies in meeting these needs. To enhance this 
function, the statutory partner agencies of the Board committed additional resources in 2019 to secure a dedicated post to support 
this work.  

Priority Area What do we need to do? Outcome Indicators 

Information and 
awareness raising of 
the work of the Board 
and the need to 
safeguard children 
and adults at risk 

We will improve our COMMUNICATIONS by: 

Reviewing and revising the existing Communication and Participation 
Strategy, to include: 

 How we will inform people of the work of the Board; and 

 How we will raise awareness of the need to safeguard children, 
young people and adults at risk 

Sharing the learning from Child Practice Reviews, Adult Practice 
Reviews, Domestic Homicide Reviews and audits to support 
improvements in multi-agency safeguarding practice 

Capturing the safeguarding communications activities undertaken by 
our partner agencies to measure how well we are doing across the 

 An increased number of 
safeguarding events and 
awareness raising activities 
being delivered 

 Positive feedback received 
as a result of these 
activities 

 Increased awareness within 
communities of 
safeguarding and the work 
of the Board 

 An improved website is in 

P
age 18



11 
CTMSB Annual Plan 2019/20  

region 

Improve the CTM website so that it is a more user-friendly and useful 
resource for professionals and public alike 

We will improve our ENGAGEMENT with people by: 

Holding events for professionals and communities within the Cwm Taf 
Morgannwg region to raise awareness of safeguarding 

Using National Safeguarding Week as a platform to engage with our 
communities and professionals 

place 

 An increased number of hits 
to the CTMSB website 

 An increase in the reporting 
and awareness of activities 
undertaken by partner 
agencies 

Participation We will provide people with an opportunity to PARTICIPATE in the 
work of the Board by: 

Carrying out a mapping exercise across the region to identify what 
participation work is currently being undertaken by agencies 

Ensuring that the people that we are safeguarding have a voice, 
including maximising the use of advocacy services to ensure the voice 
of children and adults at risk are heard throughout the work of the 
Board 

Building on existing links with youth forums/groups across the region to 
provide opportunities for them to be involved in the work of the Board. 

Building upon existing links with adult forums/groups to provide 
opportunities for them to be involved in the work of the Board 

Develop a Participation Ladder for the Board to demonstrate how 
effectively we are engaging with children, young people and adults 

 An increased number of 
children and adults being 
offered/accessing advocacy 
support 

 An increased number of 
children, young people and 
adults participating in the 
work of the Board 

 The development of a 
Junior Safeguarding Board 

 Development of a Board 
Participation Ladder 

 

Targeting People 
who are at most risk 
of abuse and/or 
neglect 

We will raise awareness of and promote safeguarding activities in 
relation to emerging themes and those people who are most at risk 
including:  

 Domestic Abuse (including Coercive Control) - develop a public 
information campaign and raise awareness amongst 

 We will receive update and 
performance reports from 
the Community Safety 
Partnership / VAWDASV 
Board on those areas of 
activity that are of a 

P
age 19



12 
CTMSB Annual Plan 2019/20  

professionals to enable them to recognise and respond to the 
signs of domestic abuse with special reference to adults at risk, 
such as older people, people with learning disability, mental 
health and substance misuse issues 

 County Lines - ensure that staff/partners access training on 
County Lines and that information is shared appropriately to 
enhance understanding across the partnership 

 Radicalisation - complete a Multi-Agency Practitioner Forum in 
relation to a high profile case and disseminate findings to 
staff/partner agencies 

 Quality of Care for Older People – awareness raising to promote 
high standards of care and improved outcomes for individuals 

safeguarding interest to the 
Board  

 An increased awareness of 
the factors that contribute to 
County Lines and its 
potential impact in the Cwm 
Taf Morgannwg region 

 An increase in PREVENT 
referrals  

 An increased awareness 
within partner agencies of 
the factors that contribute to 
the radicalisation of 
vulnerable young people 
and adults 

 
 

Strategic Priority 3: Ensure that the transition to the new regional footprint for safeguarding is managed 
effectively 

From 1 April 2019, the Board will be responsible for safeguarding in Rhondda Cynon Taf, Bridgend and Merthyr Tydfil and 
agreement has been provided to the Welsh Government that this new Board will be called the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding 
Board. The Welsh Government statutory guidance under Part 7 of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 is currently 
being revised to reflect the changes to the regional footprint for the Safeguarding Board.  

This process of transition requires effective planning and management to ensure that the Board and its partner agencies can 
continue to carry out core safeguarding functions during this time of change. Following a joint development day, the management 
of the transition process has been agreed as one of our strategic priorities this year. 

Priority Area What do we need to do? Outcome Indicators 

P
age 20



13 
CTMSB Annual Plan 2019/20  

Governance To achieve effective governance arrangements for the new Regional 
Safeguarding Board we will: 

Review the membership and terms of reference for the Board and all Sub 
Groups sitting under the Board to ensure that all relevant partners are 
represented 

Agree the required resources to manage the business of the Board, 
including the financial contributions of our statutory partner agencies 

Develop a joint work programme for the Board, which will provide the 
detailed actions, timescales and responsibilities to implement the Annual 
Plan 

 Clear governance 
arrangements 
established across the 
region 

 An agreed resource 
and budget 
arrangement in place 
across the region 

Protocols and 
Procedures  

We will ensure that the new Regional Safeguarding Board has a suite of 
protocols and procedures to support the delivery of its safeguarding 
functions by: 

Identifying the documents that are common to both Cwm Taf (Merthyr and 
RCT) and Bridgend and developing new joint protocols and procedures 

Identifying the documents that are specific to each area and agreeing on 
those that will be adopted for the new Regional Safeguarding Board 

Wherever possible, developing joint forms and templates to support our 
safeguarding processes  

 The number of 
documents reviewed 
and adopted across the 
new region 

 Positive evaluations 
from professionals 
following the 
implementation of 
revised protocols and 
procedures 

Training and 
Learning 

We will seek opportunities to align the safeguarding training and learning 
activities across the region by: 

Reviewing the remit of the existing Training and Learning Sub Group to 
ensure that it meets the needs of the region 

Seeking opportunities to collaborate on safeguarding training activities 
across the region 

Agreeing processes to identify and share learning from safeguarding audits 
and reviews with practitioners 

 An increased number of 
joint training activities 
delivered across the 
CTM region 

P
age 21



14 
CTMSB Annual Plan 2019/20  

Child and Adult 
Practice Reviews 

To carry out the statutory functions in relation to completing child and 
adult practice reviews we will:  

Review the terms of reference of the existing review groups to ensure that 
a consistent approach is adopted across the region 

Agree a referral process for child and adult practice reviews 

Identify a pool of suitably skilled reviewers to carry out child and adult 
practice reviews 

Agree the processes for approving, disseminating and monitoring the 
outcomes of review 

 Clear terms of 
reference for the 
child/adult review 
group(s) are in place 

 A common process is in 
place across the CTM 
region to refer cases, 
carry out reviews and 
share learning 

 

Quality Assurance 
and Performance 

There is a need to develop and agree a consistent approach to measuring 
the quality of safeguarding activities and reviewing performance by: 

Designing a regional approach to quality assurance, including audit 
programmes, tools and processes to support improvements to multi-
agency practice  

Agreeing a suite of performance measures to satisfy the Board that 
safeguarding activities carried out by its partner agencies are effective and 
are achieving positive outcomes for people 

Developing a Partner Agency Audit Tool to support our work in measuring 
the impact of the work that the Board undertakes  

 The establishment of a 
clear QA and 
performance framework 
across the CTM region, 
covering both children 
and adult safeguarding 

 Thematic audits are 
carried out on a CTM 
regional basis which 
focus on identified 
Board priorities 

Multi-Agency 
Safeguarding Hubs  

We will establish links between the Cwm Taf (Merthyr and RCT) and 
Bridgend MASH and identify opportunities to share good practice 

 Links between the Cwm 
Taf and Bridgend 
MASH are established 
and any actions agreed 

Regional 
Partnerships 

We will establish the regional links with other partnerships in order to 
support and promote safeguarding and public protection  

 Links between the 
Safeguarding Board 
and other partnerships 
are established and any 

P
age 22



15 
CTMSB Annual Plan 2019/20  

actions agreed 

 
 
WHO DO WE INTEND TO COLLABORATE WITH TO ACHIEVE OUR OBJECTIVES?  
 

Working in partnership with other agencies is integral to the work of the Board. This not only applies to agencies within the region 
but may also involve wider collaboration with other Boards and agency across the UK e.g. when undertaking child and adult 
practice reviews.  
 
There may also be occasions when the Board will need to engage with other organisations to carry out its functions more 
effectively. This may be on an ad-hoc basis or as part of a more permanent arrangement via Board or Sub Group membership. 
 
These collaborative activities will often occur during the year as situations arise and these are reported in our Annual Report 
(published on 31 July each year).  
 
Planned collaborative activities for the forthcoming year have been identified as follows:  
 
 

Who will we collaborate with? Areas to collaborate? 

Welsh Government  Out of county placements for Children Looked After – this has been an area that 
we have identified as requiring more work to be undertaken on a national basis 

 Child Sexual Exploitation/Child Sexual Abuse National Action Plan – awaiting 
receipt of the same Summer 2019, with an expectation that we will need to report 
on this in early 2020 

Community Safety Partnership  Domestic Abuse, Domestic Homicide Reviews - see Priority 1 for more details 

 Radicalisation (PREVENT) and Criminal Exploitation (County Lines) – see Priority 
2 for more details 

P
age 23



16 
CTMSB Annual Plan 2019/20  

Gwent Safeguarding Board  Adult Domestic Homicide Review pilot on a Rhondda Cynon Taf case – to be 
completed in the coming year 

Cardiff & The Vale Safeguarding 
Board  

 New All Wales Safeguarding Procedures – Cardiff and the Vale are leading on 
this piece of work to update the All Wales Procedures to protect children, young 
people and adults at risk from abuse and neglect. 

Serious Organised Crime Board  Modern Slavery – prevalence in the Cwm Taf Morgannwg region 

Care Inspectorate Wales  To implement the new RISCA Inspection Framework for adult safeguarding 

Third Sector  Engagement in the functions of the Regional Safeguarding Board, links to 
communities, delivery of training and awareness raising and provision of services 

Parc Prison, Bridgend  To understand the safeguarding role of the prison and its links to the Regional 
Safeguarding Board 

 
 

OUR BUDGET FOR 2019/20  
 
The Board is in the process of agreeing a budget for the year which will be resourced by financial contributions from the statutory 
partner agencies. The budget set will enable the Board to delivery its priority outcomes as set out in this Annual Plan and it is 
proposed that it will be allocated as follows: 
 

Business Management Unit Staff Costs and Accommodation: £187,355 
Advertising and Translation:      £4,000  
General Expenditure:        £5,600  
 

P
age 24



17 
CTMSB Annual Plan 2019/2020   

Are You Concerned About Someone?  
 
 
If you suspect that a child or young person is being harmed or is at 
risk of being harmed then you have a duty to report it immediately. All 
calls concerning worries about children are treated seriously.  Contact 
your local Safeguarding Team on the numbers provided below: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
If you suspect that an adult is being harmed or is at risk of being harmed 
then you have a duty to report it immediately. All calls concerning worries 
about vulnerable adults at risk are treated seriously.  Contact your local 
Safeguarding Team on the numbers provided below: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
To contact Children or Adults Services outside office hours, at weekends and bank holidays, ring the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Emergency Duty 
Team on 01443 743665. 
 
If you suspect that a child, young person or an adult is at immediate risk of harm call 999 and speak to the Police. 
 
If you would like to report a non-urgent incident, or have a problem or general query, you can call 101, the 24 hour non-emergency number for  
the police. Use 101 when the incident is less urgent than 999.  
  

Remember - safeguarding is everybody's business! 
 

For more information and advice visit: www.cwmtafsafeguarding.org * 

 
*new CTM website in development  

In Rhondda Cynon Taf:  01443 425006 
In Merthyr Tydfil:  01685 725000 
In Bridgend: 01656 642320 
  
Opening Hours: 
Monday - Thursday 8.30am - 5.00pm 
Friday - 8.30am - 4.30pm 
 

In Rhondda Cynon Taf:  01443 425003 
In Merthyr Tydfil:  01685 725000 
In Bridgend: 01656 642477 
  
Opening Hours: 
Monday - Thursday 8.30am - 5.00pm 
Friday - 8.30am - 4.30pm 
 

P
age 25

http://www.cwmtafsafeguarding.org/


18 
CTMSB Annual Plan 2019/2020   

APPENDIX 1 - BOARD MEMBERSHIP 
 

NAME TITLE AGENCY 

Giovanni Isingrini 

Louise Davies 

Jackie Neale 

Neil Elliot 

Julie Clark 

Gaynor Davies  

Ann Batley 

Cara Miles 

Director of Community and Children’s Services  (Co-Chair)  

Head of Public Protection 

Adult Safeguarding Service Manager  

Service Director, Adult Services 

Head of Safeguarding and Support (Children) 

Director of Education and Lifelong Learning 

Service Director, Children Services 

Head of Legal - Community Care and Children 

Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 

Lisa Curtis-Jones 

Jon Eyre 

Alyn Owen 

Susan Walker 

Annabel Lloyd 

Angela Edevane 

Carys Kennedy 

Chief Officer, Social Services (Co-Chair)  

Safeguarding Principal Manager 

Chief Officer, Community Regeneration 

Chief Officer, Education 

Head of Children Services 

Head of Adult Services 

Head of Legal and Governance 

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

 

P
age 26



19 
CTMSB Annual Plan 2019/2020   

Susan Cooper 

Laura Kinsey 

Jacqueline Davies 

Director of Social Services (Co-Chair) 

Head of Children’s Social Care 

Head of Adult Social Care 

Further members to be identified 

Bridgend County Borough Council 

Angela Hopkins 

Louise Mann 

Director of Nursing, Midwifery and Patient Services 

Head of Safeguarding 

Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board 

 

Karen Thomas 

Claire Evans 

Beth Aynsley/Sue Hurley 

Superintendent, Northern BCU 

Superintendent, Central BCU 

Independent Protecting Vulnerable Person Manager 

South Wales Police 

Eirian Evans Assistant Chief Officer National Probation Service 

David Bebb Assistant Chief Executive Wales Community Rehabilitation Company 

Jason Evans 

Ian Coles 

Head of Young Person’s Unit 

Interim Deputy Director 

Her Majesty’s Prison and Young Offenders 
Institute, Parc 

Heidi Bennett Director Bridgend Association of Voluntary 
Organisations 

Ian Davy Chief Officer Voluntary Action Merthyr Tydfil 

P
age 27



20 
CTMSB Annual Plan 2019/2020   

  

Maria James Third Sector Representative Interlink 

Lyndon Lewis Head of Service Cwm Taf Youth Offending Service 

Lorna Price Designated Doctor (National Safeguarding Team) Public Health Wales 

Nikki Harvey Assistant Director for Quality, Safety and Patient Experience Welsh Ambulance Services NHS Trust 

P
age 28



21 
CTMSB Annual Plan 2019/2020   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

CWM TAF MORGANNWG 
SAFEGUARDING BOARD 

 

 
Cwm Taf MASH Operational 

Committee  
 
 

 

Joint Operational Committee   

 
Adult Review 
Group (ARG) 

 
Child Review 
Group (CRG) 

 
Protocols & Procedures Sub Group 

 
Training & Learning Sub Group 

 
Engagement Participation & 
Communications Sub Group 

 
Adult Quality 

Assurance Sub 
Group (AQA) 

 

 
Children Quality 
Assurance Sub 
Group (QASG) 

 
Cwm Taf MASH 

Quality Assurance 
Sub Group (MAQA) 

APPENDIX 2 - BOARD 
STRUCTURE 

 
Multi Agency 

CSE Group 
(MACSE) 

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Young Carers Strategy 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an overview of the Young Carers Strategy 

within Merthyr Tydfil. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1  Scrutiny Committee is asked to receive this report and to raise questions and 

challenge leading to improvement.   
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Young carers are children and young people under 18 who provide regular and on-

going care and emotional support to a family member who is physically or mentally 
ill, disabled or misuses substances.  The provision for Merthyr Young Carers is 
located within Children’s Services Early Intervention and Prevention component of its 
service strategy.  

 
3.2     Local Authority Duties to Young Carers 

The Local authority’s duties to young carers are set out in the part 3 Code of Practice 
issued under the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014. 

 
3.3  A local authority must assess whether the carer has needs for support (or is likely to 

do so in the future) and if they do, what those needs are or are likely to be.  A carer 
is defined in the Act as a person who provides or intends to provide care for an adult 
or a disabled child.  

  

Date Written 24th May 2019 

Report Author Taryn Hudd 

Service Area Children’s Services 

Committee Date 11th June 2019 

Page 31

Agenda Item 4



3.4   The duty is triggered if it appears to the local authority that a carer may have needs 
for support; and we would always assume this to be the case with young carers. 

 
3.5  The assessment must include an assessment of the extent to which the carer is able 

and willing to provide the care and to continue to provide the care, the outcomes the 
carer wishes to achieve both in terms of themselves and, if a child is the carer, the 
outcomes the person(s) with parental responsibility for that child wish(es) to achieve 
for them and the extent to which support, preventative services, or the provision of 
information, advice or assistance could assist in achieving the identified outcomes.  
The local authority must involve the carer and where feasible the person for whom 
the carer provides or intends to provide care in the assessment.  

 
3.6 The assessment also must have regard to whether the young carer works or wishes 

to work and whether they are participating or wish to participate in education, training 
or leisure activities.  If the carer is a child, the assessment must have regard to his or 
her developmental needs and the extent to which it is appropriate for the child to 
provide the care.  This should lead to consideration by the local authority of whether 
a child carer is actually a child with care and support needs in his or her own right 
and who therefore should be assessed under section 21 of the Act.   

  
3.7   If the carer is a young adult carer aged between 16 and 25 the assessment must 

include an assessment of any current or future transitions the carer is likely to make 
into further or higher education, employment or training and have due regard to what 
the young adult carer wishes to participate in.  

 
3.8  There is no typical young carer.  The care they provide can be physical, emotional or 

social.  Young Carers are individuals who may not see themselves as Carers, but 
consider themselves above all a son, daughter, family member friend or neighbour.  
Caring often impacts on the whole family, not just one person.  Young Carers’ 
circumstances vary enormously, as can the type and amount of support they give.  
Caring can be a gradual process as over time someone becomes more frail and 
needs more support or it can happen suddenly, for example if someone has an 
accident or a health problem like a stroke.  Young Carers often have adult caring 
responsibilities while having the legal status of children.  Whilst it is also rewarding, 
caring can be both physically tiring and emotionally stressful.  Young carers often 
feel isolated, unsupported and alone, having to face the challenges of education and 
growing up alongside their caring responsibilities. 

 
3.9 Regional Partnership Board 

The Cwm Taf Social Services and Wellbeing Partnership Board have committed to a 
range of strategic intentions across the region in line with the Social Services and 
Well-being Act.  This has included the development of a Cwm Taf Carers Strategy 
and the establishment of a Cwm Taf Carers Partnership Group.   

 
3.10 The following principles have been used by the Cwm Taf Carers Partnership Group 

to inform its work: 
 

 We will promote and support effective communication across the partnership; 

 We will make sure that users of our services, particularly Carers, are able to 
influence the work of the partnership;  

 We will focus on what matters to the people and communities of Cwm Taf; 

Page 32



 We will promote and develop solutions towards preventing problems occurring or 
getting worse for people in Cwm Taf;  

 We will promote and support collaboration and integration;  

 We will make sure that we strike a balance between short term needs and longer 
term goals;    

 We will listen to, understand and respect individual organisational views and the 
views of other parties; 

 We will conduct business with transparency and openness; and 

 We will fully utilise the wide range of skills, knowledge and experience which are 
available to the Group. 

 
3.11 Services for Young Carers in Merthyr Tydfil 

The Young Carers Service within Merthyr Tydfil has been provided by Barnardos 
since 1997.  The service operates an open referral system, accepting referrals from 
young carers themselves, their families and professionals.  The service is currently 
facilitated by a full time project worker and a sessional worker.  The service offers: 

 Young carers assessments and care planning. 

 There are three after-school groups in community venues which provide a mix of 
leisure time and issue based topics. 

 One to one sessions are provided for young carers who need intensive support.  
This can include emotional support, support to access the health service, 
confidence building or relationship issues.  During 2018/2019 184 one to one 
sessions were conducted. 

 
3.12   Estyn Thematic Report  - Young Carers 

Scrutiny Committee members  may be aware that this year Estyn has recently 
published its thematic report on provision for young carers in secondary schools, 
further education colleges and pupil referral units across Wales and found: 

 Lack of reliable data to identify how many young carers there are in schools, 
PRUs and colleges. 

 Many providers do not know which of their pupils and learners have a caring role. 

 Provision for young carers at secondary schools, colleges and PRUs varies 
widely. 

 Secondary schools, colleges and PRUs that are most effective in meeting the 
needs of young carers have robust systems to identify these learners, track their 
wellbeing needs regularly and adapt their provision carefully to meet the 
individual needs of each young carer.  However, only a minority of the schools, 
colleges and PRUs surveyed use an information management system to track 
and report on the progress young carers make compared with their peers.   

 Secondary schools, colleges and PRUs that have a named lead member of staff 
for young carers generally provide a high level of care, support and guidance for 
this group of learners. 

 Young carers benefit considerably where local authorities have a clear strategic 
plan for carers and a named person to drive forward the strategy in educational 
settings.  

 Specialist agencies provide high quality resources and support to raise 
awareness and meet the needs of young carers.  But many secondary schools, 
colleges and PRUs do not engage well enough with these agencies and have not 
accessed this valuable support.   

 
 

Page 33



3.13 The following recommendations are made for schools: 
 

1. Ensure that they have sound procedures to identify which of their pupils/learners 
have a caring role.   

2. Have a named member of staff with lead responsibility for young carers who acts 
as a point of contact for young carers and champions their needs.   

3. Raise staff awareness of young carers’ needs. 
4. Engage with specialist services to review and improve their provision to meet the 

needs of young carers. 
5. Track and monitor the progress and outcomes for young carers as they currently 

do for other groups of vulnerable learners. 
6. Evaluate their provision for young carers with reference to the checklist in 

Appendix 1 or available toolkits. 
  
3.14  There is one recommendation within the report for local authorities:  

 The local authority should focus carer strategies on increasing the capacity of 
schools, colleges and PRUs to identify and meet the needs of young carers. 

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 During 2017/2018 35 new assessments of young carers were undertaken, all of the 

assessments led to a support plan; 135 support plans were reviewed by the service, 
with 130 being within agreed timescales. 

 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 
 

5.1 During 2018/2019 24 new young carers assessments were undertaken, all of which 
led to a support plan.  A further 156 young carers support plans were reviewed within 
the set timescales. 

 
5.2 For the first time Merthyr Tydfil Young Carers in May 2018 had the opportunity to 

engage in a residential stay.  This was delivered via PGL Travel Ltd which is the 
UK’s leading outdoor education provider, delivering inspirational learning through 
adventure.  This was significant for those that attended as many young carers do not 
have the same opportunities as their peers to have a ‘holiday’.  They engaged in a 
number of activities including archery, raft racing and abseiling; all of which are 
designed to build young people’s resilience and confidence.  Twenty seven young 
carers participated in the residential.  On the final day those who attended gave 
feedback on their experience of attending the residential, these are some of the 
many positive comments shared: 

 I have got to learn more about other people. 

 I have enjoyed everything, it was my first time away from home. 

 It was my first time away from home, never even had a sleepover.  Raft building 
was amazing. 

 It’s stopped me being afraid of heights.  It’s helped me feel more confident 
leaving my nan alone. 

 I have made new friends. 

 I feel more confident. 
 
 
 

Page 34



5.3 Merthyr Tydfil’s Young Carers Choir was established in January 2019.  A highlight 
for the choir was the opportunity to perform in the Barnardo’s Young Supporters 
Concert at St David’s Hall, Cardiff.  The benefits of the choir are providing young 
carers with opportunities that help build their self-esteem and confidence. 

 
5.4     The financial year of 2018/2019 saw a reduction in funding to the Young Carers 

Service from Families First.  In 2019/2020 the provision is entirely core funded; this 
has meant an overall reduction in the young carers’ budget.  Children’s Services has 
sought to access carers’ monies to supplement the provision to young carers and 
create capacity via the development of the Early Help Hub aimed at increasing 
young carers’ access to a broader range of preventative services. 

 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 
 
6.1 Merthyr Tydfil Young Carers’ Service intends to build upon its strengths and develop 

from its learning.  In 2019/2020 there is the introduction of the Early Help Hub. 
Young Carers’ project worker will have a presence within the hub to achieve the 
following outcomes: 

 

 Early identification of young people who are young carers and proactively 
signpost them to the service. 

 Ensure that assessments consider the wider preventative support needs of the 
young carers’ family unit. 

 Utilise wider third sector services to support the young carer and their family. 

 Develop strong working links with education to identify young carers and support 
planning for their educational attainment. 

 
6.2 Funding has been agreed for a further residential opportunity for young carers.  

Moving forward we are keen to ensure that this funding via Cwm Taf Morgannwg 
Carers Project Group is maximised to provide as many young carers as possible 
with a residential opportunity. 

   
6.3 Merthyr Tydfil Young Carers’ Service want to ensure that young carers’ are provided 

with the right support at the right time to maximise the likelihood of young carers 
meeting their potential. 

 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 
 
7.1 Relevant Council Officers and Barnardos staff will continue to work closely to    

maximise the opportunities for our young carers and support them to access wider 
services. 

 
7.2     We will continue to advocate for our young carers to retain visibility of their needs 

and access to any additional resources as part of the Cwm Taf Carers Strategy. 
 
7.3 A task and finish group needs to be developed with education to support the offer 

provided to our young carers and their families.  We will work closely with Education 
staff who linking in with schools, will seek to ensure that the recommendations of the 
recently published Estyn thematic report are implemented locally. 

 
 

Page 35



8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 
 
8.1 This area of business and the Council’s offer under Children’s Services Strategy 

Early Intervention and Prevention – Children and their families received the right help 
at the right time to prevent escalation of need. In line with our overall vision: 
 
Children and young people are safe and healthy; have the right help at the right time; 
are supported to live with their family or close to home; and, have stable and 
successful lives. 

 
 
 
LISA CURTIS JONES 
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES) 

COUNCILLOR CHRIS DAVIES 
CABINET MEMBER FOR SOCIAL 

SERVICES  
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Young Carers Report April 2019 
 

Attached 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Draft Forward Work Programme 2019/20  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind Scrutiny Committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the attached draft work programme and approves, revises 
or amends it as deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions at 3.7 in planning 
for the next meeting.  

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached work programme identifies the topics and issues under consideration 
by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional subjects to be 
identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

Date Written 2nd June 2019 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 11th June 2019 

Page 89

Agenda Item 5



 
3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 

help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.  
 
The key outcomes for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination.  
 
The key outcomes for Working Life are:  
 

 Merthyr Tydfil realises its full economic potential, with a skilled workforce and 
better employment opportunities; 

 People value and enjoy the built and natural environment, protecting and 
enhancing our cultural assets for current and future generations;  

 We have strong, resilient and supportive communities where people take 
responsibility for their own actions and how they affect others.  

 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside.  
 
 The key outcomes for Environmental Wellbeing are:  
 

 Environmental damage is minimised by preventing pollution 

 To maximise the amount of materials and resources recycled in line with the 
waste hierarchy; 

 Merthyr Tydfil has good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure 
and open spaces; and 

 The use of renewable and low carbon energy is increased.  
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  
 
The key outcomes for Living Well are: 
 

 People live safe and independent lives within their communities 

 Children and adults are safeguarded from harm and feel safe 

 Children and young people live safely with their family or close to home and 
have transitioned well into adulthood. 

 

 

Page 90



3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 
that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 
matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 

the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a Scrutiny Work Programme? 

a. Does this item/topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s wellbeing 
objectives and priorities? 

b. Is this item/topic relating to service performance concerns? 
c. Is this item/topic of significant public interest? 
d. Has the item/topic got budgetary implications? 
e. Is this a item/topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
f. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the Committee? 

            This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 
a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 

department; 
 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose; 

 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 
major issue; 

d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 
investigation / review; 

e. to explore possible solutions to an issue. 
 

Q) What outcome is the Committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 

Page 91



c. To receive an overview presentation. 
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy / strategy 
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives / other plan / other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the Committee need to fulfil this role / achieve 
this outcome?  

What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas / 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 

Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations? 

The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate / Cabinet 
Member / External Partner etc prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the Committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending ensure that they have the information / answer 
ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format / venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

 Meetings do not have to be held in a formal committee room environment. 
You may wish to hold occasional meetings out in the community e.g. 
community centres, sports facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some 
people find the formal setting intimidating. Site visits for example may be more 
appropriate to see first-hand what the committee is investigating / obtaining 
information on e.g. waste sites, regeneration projects etc. 

 
Q) Method of Scrutiny? 

 Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 

b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 

c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 
to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 

e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 

Page 92



f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 

g. Seeking the views of service users/carers and/or the general public (public 
calls for evidence). 

 
 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

17th April 2019 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 17th April 2019  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 93

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/s44203/Committee%20Report.pdf?LLL=0


  

APPENDIX I 

Page 94



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 

Date / Timing 
PROPOSED 

Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet 
Member  

Scrutiny Focus  

11th June 2019 

Young Carers Annual 
Report (2018/19) 
 

Annabel Lloyd  Scrutiny & Challenge: - Summary report providing a position statement on the 
performance within 2018/19, along with any details of issues/barriers experienced and 
how these have been overcome. The report is also to consider key areas for development 
and improvement for 2019/20 within Merthyr Tydfil. 

Safeguarding Board 
Annual Report and 
Plan (2018/19) 

Nicola Kingham and 
officers / Jon Eyre / Cllr 
Chris Davies 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - To provide a summary of the 2018/19 Safeguarding Board Annual 
Regional Plan and also identify the key areas of improvement going forward both 
regionally and in Merthyr Tydfil. 

Draft Annual Forward 
Work Programme 
(2019/20) 

Cllr. Bill Smith and 
Social Services Scrutiny 
Committee Members 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - To consider and approve the Forward Work Programme for Social 
Services (2019/2020). 

9th July 2019 

Cwm Taf Youth 
Offending Service 
(YOS) Annual Report  
(2018/19) 

Annabel Lloyd / 
Lyndon Lewis  

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Youth Offending Service (YOS) is a multi-agency team which is 
made up of members of the Police, Probation, Health, Education, Substance Misuse and 
Social Services; as well as other specific to the team.  The YOS deals with young people 
between the ages of 10 and 18 who are involved in the criminal justice system and those 
who are just on the periphery of becoming involved in the system. The Cwm Taf Youth 
Offending Service (YOS) last presented a progress update report to scrutiny on 24th July 
2018 based on the Post Inspection Action Plan.   
 

The committee requires a position statement on the performance within the Cwm Taf 
region (2018/19), along with any details of issues/barriers experienced and how these 
have been overcome. The report is also to consider key areas for development and 
improvement for 2019/20 within Merthyr Tydfil. 

Reconfiguration of 
Homes 

Lisa Curtis-Jones / 
Chris Davies/ Lowri 
Morgan / Angela 
Edevane  

Scrutiny & Challenge: - This report is to include an update and feedback from the recent 
consultation and a detailed plan prior to its submission to Full Council.   
 

ACRF - Annual Report 
on Social Services 
(2018/19) 

Lisa Curtis-Jones / Cllr 
Chris Davis / Annabel 
Lloyd / Angela Edevane 
/ Lorna Townsend  

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Draft ACRF was brought to Scrutiny on 7th May 2019 to 
provide comment and challenge as a part of the Consultation process.  
 

This report should contain all further updates from any additional consultation and 
previous comments made by Scrutiny, before submitting to Full Council.  

Mental Health 
Inspection (2019/20?) 

 Scrutiny & Challenge: - The report should consider the strengths and development areas 
highlighted within the recent Mental Health Inspection feedback report, and also to 

P
age 95



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Feedback Report consider key areas for improvement within Merthyr Tydfil for 2019/20. 

17th September 2019 

Mid-year update on 
Social Services 
Complaints, 
Representations and 
Compliments Report.  
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones  Scrutiny & Challenge: - Local Authorities are required to the Social Services Complaints 
Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 and the Representations Procedure (Wales) 
Regulations 2014 to produce an Annual Report about the operation of their Social 
Services Complaints, Representations and Compliments Policy and Procedures.  
 

The annual report (2018/19) was presented to Scrutiny on 12th March 2019. The 
committee has requested a mid-year (2019/20) report be brought back for consideration 
and challenge. The committee expects further information on complaints within the 
report (e.g. the areas the complaints were made, what processes etc. has been 
changed/introduced in order to reduce the number of complaints etc.).  

Adult Services 
Strategies (2019/20)  
Q2/mid-year update 

Angela Edevane Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Adult Services will provide a mid-year update on 
strategies applicable to Adult Social Services. 
 

A mid-year update on 
Cwm Taf Integrated 
Family Support Team 
(IFST) (2019/20) 

Annabel Lloyd Scrutiny & Challenge: - To provide a regional mid-year position statement on the Cwm 
Taf IFST services, and also provide an update on the Edge of Care Service (EOC) within 
MTCBC. 

8th October 2019 

Children Services 
Strategies (2019/20)  
Q2/mid-year update 
 

Annabel Lloyd Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Children’s Services will provide a mid-year update on 
strategies applicable to Children’s Social Services. 
 

Budget Position 
Statement (2019/20) 
Q2/mid-year update 

Lisa Curtis-Jones / Cllr 
Chris Davies / Stacey 
Evans 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report is to be presented to Scrutiny providing an update on 
Social Services budget for Quarter 1 and Quarter 2, areas of likely overspend and the 
measures that have been put in place to help reduce any overspend within the 
department.    

A mid-year update on 
the Safeguarding 
Board Annual Report 
and Plan (2019/20) 

Nicola Kingham and 
officers / Jon Eyre / Cllr 
Chris Davies 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - To provide a summary of the 2018/19 Safeguarding Board Annual 
Regional Plan and also identify the key areas of improvement going forward both 
regionally and in Merthyr Tydfil. 
 

10th December 2019 

Vale, Valleys And 
Cardiff Adoption 
Collaborative (VVC) 
Annual Report 
(2018/19) and 

Annabel Lloyd Scrutiny & Challenge: - This report is to provide a regional annual position summary 
(2018/19) along with a current position update on this service within Merthyr Tydfil 
(2019/20). 
 

P
age 96



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

2019/20 Merthyr 
Tydfil update  

SS&WB Regional Plan 
– progress update 
(2019/20) 
Q2/mid-year update 

Lisa Curtis-Jones  Scrutiny & Challenge: - This report is to provide a regional annual position summary 
(2018/19) along with a current position update on this service within Merthyr Tydfil 
(2019/20). 
 

A mid-year update on 
Young Carers 
 

Annabel Lloyd  Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report is to be presented to Scrutiny with a mid-year update on 
Carers Strategy and the impact it is having on the Young Carers.  Details should also be 
provided on any issues/barriers experienced and how these have been overcome or how 
you plan to overcome them.  

21st January 2020 

Adult Services 
Strategies (2019/20)  
Q3 update 

Angela Edevane Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Adult Services will provide a mid-year update on 
strategies applicable to Adult Social Services. 
 

Corporate Parenting 
Update 

Annabel Lloyd  Scrutiny & Challenge: -  To provide data and performance in relation to Corporate 
Parenting 

Budget Position 
Statement (2019/20) 
update 

Lisa Curtis-Jones / Cllr 
Chris Davies / Stacey 
Evans 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report is to be presented to Scrutiny providing an update on 
Social Services budget for Quarter 1, 2 and 3, and areas of likely overspend and the 
measures that have been put in place to help reduce any overspend within the 
department.  This report should also give any details of issues/barriers experienced and 
how these have been overcome. 

10th March 2020 

Children Services 
Strategies (2019/20)  
Q3/end of year update 
 

Annabel Lloyd Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Children’s Services will provide a Quarter 3/end of 
year update on strategies applicable to Children’s Social Services. 
 

  Scrutiny & Challenge: -  
 

  Scrutiny & Challenge: -  
 

5th May 2020 

Annual Complaints 
Report (2019/20) 
End of year update 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones  Scrutiny & Challenge: - Local Authorities are required to the Social Services Complaints 
Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 and the Representations Procedure (Wales) 
Regulations 2014 to produce an Annual Report about the operation of their Social 
Services Complaints, Representations and Compliments Policy and Procedures.  
 
A mid-year report (2019/20) was presented to Scrutiny in September 2019. The 
committee has requested an end of year report (2019/20) for consideration and 

P
age 97



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

challenge. The report should include any details of issues/barriers experienced and how 
these have been overcome. The report is also to identify key areas for development and 
improvement for 2020/21. 

ACRF Report (2019/20) 
(consultation) 

Lisa Curtis-Jones  Scrutiny & Challenge: - Following a consultation workshop with Scrutiny Members; a 
report summarising key messages from the Annual Report on Social Services 2019/2020 
will be presented for information. 
 

  Scrutiny & Challenge: -  
 

 
Additional items to consider for Work 

 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

LAC Work (Welsh 
Government visit)  

This would be better delivered in the form of a presentation when the information is available. 
 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Fostering Inspection 
Report  and Fostering 
Framework Report  
 

 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Advocacy Annual 
Report  
 

 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Self Evaluation Reports  Early indication would suggest there are three reports throughout the scrutiny cycle (1 report per SER question). 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Possibility of a Joint 
Scrutiny with Learning 
and LGES  

Possible topics to consider:  

 Educational Achievements of Children Looked After (CLA) and Care Leavers; 

 Tackling Poverty; 

 Community Zones; and 

 Early Years Learning. 

 Violence against 
Women Domestic 
Abuse and Sexual 
Violence (Annual 
report 2018/19) 

Lisa Curtis-Jones  
/ Annabel Lloyd / 
Cllr Chris Davies / 
Deborah Evans 
(SMT) / Paul 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council is a member of the Cwm Taf 
Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (VAWDASV) Steering Group, 
which is the lead partnership taking forward the Cwm Taf regions implementation of the 
Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015. 
 

The Committee would like to receive a summary report providing a position statement on 

P
age 98



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 
 
 

Lewis ‘Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence’ within the Cwm Taf region 
(2018/19). The report should include any details of issues/barriers experienced and how these 
have been overcome. The report is also to consider key areas for development and 
improvement for 2019/20 within Merthyr Tydfil. 

P
age 99



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Safeguarding Board Annual Report and Plan (2018/19)
	Appendix

	4 Young Carers Strategy
	Appendix

	5 Draft Forward Work Programme 2019/20
	Appendix


